
APPROVED 09/03/2019 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 
June 6, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
 

The Orange County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Thursday, June 6, 2019 
at 7:00 p.m. at the Southern Human Services Center in Chapel Hill, N.C.  

 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Chair Penny Rich and Commissioners 
Jamezetta Bedford, Mark Dorosin, Sally Greene, Earl McKee, Mark Marcoplos and Renee 
Price 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  None 
COUNTY ATTORNEYS PRESENT:  None 
COUNTY STAFF PRESENT: County Manager Bonnie Hammersley, Deputy County 
Manager Travis Myren, and Deputy Clerk II Sherri Ingersoll (All other staff members will be 
identified appropriately below.) 
 

Chair Rich called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
Travis Myren noted the following items at the Board of County Commissioners’ (BOCC) 

places:   
 

- Green sheet:  requested information regarding Board of County Commissioners dues and    
National Association of Counties (NACo) costs 

- Purple sheet:  Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) changes suggested by staff 
- Pink sheet:  Suggested amendments to the operating budget 
  

Chair Rich asked if additional amendments can be made before the meeting on June 
11th. 

Bonnie Hammersley said changes can be made until the end of the business day on 
June 10. 

Chair Rich said it would be best to get amendments to staff before the June 10th meeting 
in case staff needs to do additional research. 
 
1. Discussion with County Departments within the following Functional Leadership 

Teams (including Operations, Capital, and Fee Schedule Changes): 
Human Services  

• Aging, Pg. 44 
• Cardinal Innovations, Pg. 91 
• Child Support Services, Pg. 93 
• Health Department, Pg. 268 
• Housing and Community Development, Pg. 278 
• Human Rights and Relations, Pg. 292 
• Library Services, Pg. 299 
• Social Services, Pg. 375  
• Non-Departmental, Pg. 313 
 

Community Services 



• Animal Services, Pg. 54 
• Cooperative Extension, Pg. 99 
• Department of Environment, Agriculture, and Parks & Recreation, Pg. 122 
• Economic Development, Pg. 139, including Article 46 Sales Tax Fund, Pg. 

62 
• Orange County Public Transportation, Pg. 333 
• Planning and Inspections, Pg. 350 
• Solid Waste, Pg. 390 
• Sportsplex, Pg. 399 
• Non-Departmental, Pg. 306 

 
BACKGROUND: The County Manager presented the FY 2019-20 Recommended Operating 
Budget on May 2, 2019. Since then, the Board has conducted two public hearings to receive 
residents' comments regarding the proposed funding plan. On May 23, 2019, the Board 
discussed recommended FY 2019-20 budgets for Durham Technical Community College – 
Orange County campus, Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools Board of Education and Orange 
County Schools Board of Education, as well as reviewed and discussed recommended FY 
2019-20 funding for Outside Agencies. On May 30, 2019, the Board discussed recommended 
FY 2019-20 budgets for the Fire Districts, as well as the Public Safety, General Government, 
and Support Services Functional Leadership Teams.  
 
Tonight's work session offers the Board an opportunity to review and discuss the recommended 
budgets directly with County departments, Cardinal Innovations and Sportsplex, within the 
remaining Functional Leadership Teams, including operations, capital, and department fee 
schedule change recommendations.  
 
Functional Leadership Teams:  
The following Functional Leadership Teams are scheduled to attend tonight's work session:  
 
Human Services:  

• Aging  
• Cardinal Innovations  
• Child Support Services  
• Health Department  
• Housing and Community Development 
• Human Rights and Relations  
• Library Services  
• Social Services  

 
Community Services:  

• Animal Services  
• Cooperative Extension  
• Department of Environment, Agriculture, and Parks & Recreation  
• Economic Development, including Article 46 Sales Tax  
• Orange County Public Transportation  
• Planning and Inspections  
• Solid Waste  
• Sportsplex  

 
 Travis Myren made the following PowerPoint presentation: 



 

 
 

Commissioner McKee arrived at 7:03 p.m. 
 

 

 
 



Commissioner Price asked if an explanation could be given as to why the operations had 
a fluctuation over the years, as the estimated revised budget is going down. 

Janice Tyler, Aging Director, said this is related to an Adminstration for Community 
Living (ACL) grant, which was over a three year period, and ended last August. 

Commissioner Price asked if there is an end date for the grant for extended 
transportation services. 

Janice Tyler said the renewal will go for another two years, after the end of this year.  
She said this grant is fund through the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).  She said her 
department is very involved with Orange County Public Transit (OCPT). 

Commissioner Price referred to recent hot weather, and heard that Aging was giving out 
fans to those in need.  She asked if the department has enough fans to give out.  

Janice Tyler said the department received a $1,000 private donation for fans, which is 
sufficient for now. 

Chair Rich said the Sheriff’s office also hands out fans. 
Travis Myren continued the presentation: 
 

 

 

 
 



Chair Rich asked if the Freedom House will be accepting more money this year, as it did 
not apply for outside agency funding. 

Travis Myren said yes, Freedom House received funds last year and a portion of those 
funds were not used, and thus reallocated; but Freedom House is still a significant recipient of 
funding. 

Commissioner Price said the PowerPoint slide states OPC, but this is now called the 
Central Community Board, as it includes Alamance and Caswell counties.  

Travis Myren continued the presentation: 
 

 

 
  
There were no questions for Child Support Services. 
 

 
 
Travis Myren said the Health Department works with lots of data with different systems, 

and the additional position is needed as the County’s Information Technology support is needed 
to support other divisions. 

 



 
 
Travis Myren said that the County is now providing mobile dental operations. 

 
 
Commissioner Marcoplos referred to the IT support position, and asked if this will be a 

contracted person, or a service that can be called when needed. 
Quintana Stewart, Health Director, said this will be a person who will help navigate the 

new electronic health records system, so the department can pull out the necessary data. 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if this is a temporary position or will it become an ongoing 

need. 
Quintana Stewart said it is intended to be a temporary position. 
Commissioner Price asked if the employees listed on p. 271 are the Navigators. 
Quintana Stewart said yes.   
Paul Laughton said there is a corresponding reduction in another line item regarding 

this. 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if there is a rationale for bringing the Navigators in house. 
Quintana Stewart said the program has become disjointed, due to having two locations.  

She said there is a desire to have consistency, and it was unfair to the Navigators that the 
department was contracting them out when others were getting benefits as employees.  She 
said the Navigators will now also be able to get benefits. 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if the Navigators will still be recruited from the 
neighborhoods, and be a grassroots effort. 

Quintana Stewart said yes, the only difference is that they will be County employees.  
Commissioner Bedford asked if it is possible to get a copy of the report  on behavioral 

health services.  
Quintana Stewart said she is scheduled to present this to the Board of County 

Commissioners in the near future, and will get this information soon. 
Travis Myren said the analysis is done, and awaiting approval of the cover letter.  He 

said it is a different population than the Criminal Justice report, but there are similar gaps. 



Chair Rich asked if there will be a trust problem with the Navigators becoming 
employees.  She said there is a trust that has been built with the community, and asked if that 
trust will remain if the Navigators are County employees rather than community members. 

Quintana Stewart said she does not anticipate any concerns, as the Navigators will be 
still be an active part of the community.  She said staff will closely monitor this situation. 

 

 

 
  

Commissioner Greene said the Family Success Alliance (FSA) is a great program, but 
since it is a pipeline progam, she wants to put a marker on it for the continued sustainability of 
the program in the future.  She said she is concerned how the program will keep going if there is 
not ongoing funding. 

 

 



 

 
 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if the cost recovery is calculated through program fees. 
Travis Myren said yes, it is related to fees, such as restaurant inspections, and well and 

septic inspections.  He said the review time expectation has changed dramatically, due to 
department and staff changes.  He resumed the presentation: 

 

 
 
Travis Myren said cost recovery has slipped a bit, but this is not concerning due to the 

overall size of the budget.  He resumed the presentation: 



 

 
 
Travis Myren referred to the status of Medicaid, and said Quintana Stewart will be 

negotiating with prepaid health plans to get them under contract to begin in late summer, and 
have them in place when enrollees will start to select their plans.  He resumed the PowerPoint 
presentation: 

 

 



 

 
  

Commissioner Dorosin said 535 vouchers have been utilized, and asked if all of these 
people have been able to find somewhere to live. 

Sherrill Hampton, Housing Director, said this year there were only 3 or 4 persons who 
were not served, due to their voucher expiring, even after an extension.  She said the local rate 
is really good, and extends up to 120 days. 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if the chart reflects that fewer vouchers were allocated. 
Sherrill Hampton said no, there are 623 regular vouchers, and 5 VASH vouchers.  She 

said there were a number of deaths, voluntary EOPs, and absorptions from other jurisdictions 
because Orange County did not have the manpower to open the waiting list and move it.  She 
said it is important to note that as of July 1, the number will increase, as the number of people 
who were absorbed and new people coming in, will not show up until that time. 

Commissioner McKee asked if people are being connected with training and other 
programs to help them move into another financial situation, where subsidy will not be needed. 

Sherrill Hampton said yes, we have a good program with the Department of Social 
Services (DSS) for self sufficiency. 

Commissioner McKee said it is important to encourage this, and to make sure people 
rotate in and out of the program. 

Commissioner Price referred to those facing homelessness, and asked if there is a 
process to determine those with whom the Housing Department works, and those with whom 
the Partnership To End Homelessness (PTEH) works. 

Sherrill Hampton said the two entities work together. She said that before she joined the 
County, there was a preference added for homelessness, so when the random lottery is done, 
the homeless are given preference.   

Commissioner Price said the Housing Department does a great deal and expressed 
gratitude to Sherrill Hampton.  She asked if there is a status update on the condition of the 
housing stock for low income residents.  



Sherrill Hampton said she is proud of her staff, and the County went from 2 houses in 
2017 to 40 by the end of 2019, which is a great accomplishment.  She said staff is finding that  
the level of substandardness is high, and her department has had to supplement the funds.  
She said another finding is that there are lot of well and septic issus, and her department works 
closely with the Health Department, who assesses the situation to bring it in line with state 
regulations.  She said part of the rehab program has been carved out for well and septic repair, 
and is part of the budget.  She said the highest well cost $13,800. 

Commissioner Price referred to the budget line item for housing rehabilitation, and asked 
if this is increasing from $375,000 to $754,000 because more funding is needed. 

Sherrill Hampton said yes, the funds are for urgent repair, the well and septic repair, and 
comprehensive rehabilitation goes even higher.  She said this replenishes the funds, and there 
are several jobs forthcoming that will have relatively high costs.  She said staff is focusing on 
making the best and most efficient decisions.  

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 

 



 
  

Travis Myren said there is a lot of acitivity in the central and western parts of the County.  
Commissioner Marcoplos asked if seniors are given prioity. 
Sherrill Hampton said yes, the urgent critical repair program is at 50% and is only for 

elderly, physically challenged, and low income individuals. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 
 
Commissioner Greene said the racial equity analysis seems to be a major issue to 

tackle, and asked if this encompasses specific items.  
Annette Moore, Human Rights and Relations Director, said they plan to assemble a 

team to look at County policies and procedures, and work with the Government Alliance on 
Race and Equity (GARE), and in cohort with other County and State agencies, to come up with 
a plan on how to undo racism in our agencies and how this effort can be expanded across the 
board with common language. 

Commissioner Price asked if Annette Moore could explain the areas of discrimination for 
the 19 fair housing complaints. 

Annette Moore said the most common complaint that staff is seeing is disability cases.  
She said the other common issue is familial status cases.  She gave an example of a housing 
provider that told people that they could only have three people in a two bedroom unit.  She said 
there are providers out there that believe this type of discimination is acceptable.  She said staff 
is going a lot of training for housing providers and residents on rights.  She said there is also a 
big push by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to look at sexual 
harrassment in public housing, and her staff will be doing some work around this area. 

Commissioner Dorosin said none of these complaints are unusual, and this has been a 
big year for the department, which is a good thing.  He said there has been incredible work 
done here, but going forward, everyone needs do a better job communicating about local 
programs, what the County is doing, how it is doing it, promoting the work of this area and 



events, and engaging input from the community.  He said he hopes Orange County will continue 
be on the cutting edge on civil rights. 

Annette Moore agreed and said her department is doing a self assessment, and is 
learning a lot.  She said she expects all will see a difference going forward. 

Chair Rich said she would like to get a calendar of events set early, to avoid overlapping 
programs and conflicting events.  She said coordination could be better handled. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 
 
Travis Myren said that the only change is for increased circulation materials to be shared 

between the three locations. 
Chair Rich asked if the digital library is growing. 
Lucinda Munger, Library Director, said yes, and there is still only about 1,000 items.  She 

said the good news is that digital content does not take up shelf space and does not have to be 
processed; however, cost is the bad news, as a digital collection is very expensive.  She said 
the digital collection is very popular. 
 Commissioner Price asked if the library has enough computers. 

Lucinda Munger said yes, and about half go unused during the day and staff is looking 
to reallocate them for better usage. 

Commissioner Price commended the variety of acitivities avaiable at the library, 
especially for young people. 

Chair Rich said residents are fortunate to have great accessibliity through the different 
locations, and can get materials easily through the Orange County library. 

Lucinda Munger said the frequency of the courier service has greatly increased, and 
staff wants to transfer items back and forth.  She says there is a good chance one can get one’s 
item within 48 hours.  

Travis Myren said that the CIP is still holding funds for the Southern Branch.  He said the 
Arts Center is no longer participating, and Carrboro is evaluating parking options.  He said the 
project is making progress, but some redesign work is needed due to the Arts Center stepping 
out of the project.  He said the operating costs will be about $660,000 for the new branch when 
it opens. 

Commissioner McKee asked if this cost is to be borne by the County, and when the 
BOCC can expect to get an update on the project. 

Bonnie Hammersley said yes, the cost will be borne by the County, and staff will have 
more information after the summer break.  She said an email was sent today to the Board of 
County Commissioners with a brief update, but staff is not in a position to talk about it right now. 

Travis Myren said the email did not actually go out today, but will go out tomorrow 
morning.  He resumed the presentation: 



 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 
Commissioner Price asked if the Medicaid increase is due to more children. 
Nancy Coston, Social Services Director, said this is mainly families with chidren, and 

when the Affordable Care Act (ACA) came about, staff screened for Medicaid but some families 
had not come in.  



Commissioner Dorosin asked if Orange County is comparable with other counties in this 
area.  

Nancy Coston said there is a misconception that Orange County has no low income 
families. She said there are many families where the parents are not eligible for Medicaid, but 
the children are, and the poverty rate is still very high in the County. 

Commissioner Dorosin said these families are possibly at greater risk, and it is more 
challenging. 

Nancy Coston said that everything costs more, and it is harder for families. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 
 
Commissioner McKee asked if there is any way to determine the source for the increase 

in neglect.  
Nancy Coston said staff has to identify contributing factors, and parental substance 

abuse, domestic violence and mental health issues are the consistent causes in about 80% of 
cases.  She said it involves all kinds of drugs and alcohol, and the domestic violence situations 
are complex, and often result in requiring DSS custody. 

Commissioner Marcoplos asked if these increases are happening across the country. 
Nancy Coston said yes, and Orange County is slightly slower in increasing foster care 

numbers, than other counties.  She said this is a big problem. 
Chair Rich asked if all of the kids are being fostered. 
Nancy Coston said yes.  She said the majority of children are in family foster care, with 

the next largest group being therapuetic foster care through the mental health system.  She said 
the latter are still with families, but there is additional treatment and funding through the mental 
health system.  She said kinship care is also used a lot, followed by a small group of very 
challenging children who do not do well in family foster care.  She said some children are in 
emergency rooms for a horribly long time, and it can be very difficult to find good placements for 
some children. 



Commissioner Price asked if the Social Worker 1 position is an entry level position. 
 Nancy Coston said yes, it is an entry level social worker position, but it is not a Child 
Protective Services Social Worker.  She said this position will work alongside Child Protective 
Services social workers to allow them to provide better focus. 

Travis Myren said the funding for this position is for 6 months, starting in January.  He 
resumed the presentation: 

 

 
 

Commissioner McKee asked if this reduction in face to face visits is because of case 
load. 

Nancy Coston said yes, it is difficult to meet the needs.  She said children that are 
placed in other states are a challenge, and this is a hard measure to meet. 

Commissioner McKee said the state requirement is misleading, and asked if it must be 
at the 95% level. 

Nancy Coston said yes, wherever the children are, DSS staff need to get to them. 
Commissioner McKee said that if the trend starts to drop, the BOCC needs to know this. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 



 

 

 

 



 
 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if there are eligible families who are not getting subsidies.  
Nancy Coston said DSS started a wait list again a couple of months ago. She said this 

happens all the time, but the state gave more money, and staff can start to clear the wait list. 
She said there are over 100 now, and about $500,000 in state funds has come in.  She said 
more people are getting employed now, and the trend is back up, but she thinks things are back 
on track now. 

Commissioner Dorosin said he would be interested in a review of an annualized update 
on how the County is doing with poverty related issues in different departments.  He said he 
would like updates more frequenty, and to maybe learn about particular areas that are 
persistently problematic and need to be addressed.  He said he wants to know how the County 
should prioritize.   He said perhaps the County should focus on the FSA, child care subsidies, or 
Pre-K and housing, all of which have complicating issues.  He said it would be helpful to 
evealuate maintaining the socioeconomic needs of the community the same way that the BOCC 
prioritizes budgetary outcomes, as well as substantive outcomes.  

Commissioner Marcoplos said since the BOCC will be getting the results of the poverty 
study in the fall, that might be a good time to pull in more information. 

Quintana Stewart, Health Director, said staff is working on updating that report now. 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if the report incorporates other areas. 
Bonnie Hammersley said yes, this is for the whole Human Services team. 
Chair Rich said this would be a good petition to get a quarterly update, and will address 

it at the next meeting. 
Chair Rich asked if there is an update on the balance of the Social Justice fund. 
Bonnie Hammersley said there is $200,000 in the recommended budget.  She said there 

was $328,000, and $128,000 has been removed.   
Commissioner Price asked if emergency revenue to OCIM is working well. 
Nancy Coston said yes, this has been a good partnership, and DSS is contracting with 

OCIM to deal with walk in emergencies for cases in which DSS is not already involved. She said 
this contract was the right decision. 

Commissioner Price asked if the County is prepared for a direct or indirect hit, or a 
disaster. 

Nancy Coston said the County is definitely working on a plan, and has been internally 
discussing sheltering concerns.  She said each event brings new opporutnities, but flooding has 
been a consistent problem. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 



 
 

Commissioner McKee referred to the outreach programs and summer enrichment  
programs that require transportation, and asked if staff has looked at how to facilitate bus 
service for this travel. 

Travis Myren said yes, staff has looked into this and can look further. 
Commissioner McKee said transportation is an ongoing issue, and the County should 

keep this in-house, so private transportation is not needed.  He said this is an issue for 
community centers arranging travel for special field trips, and private coaches are expensive, 
and other options bring up insurance issues. 

Commissioner Greene said this is an issue for the Rogers Road Community Center right 
now. 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if school buses could be used during the summer. 
Chair McKee said there are insurance and availability issues. 
Commissioner Greene said church vans in the vacinity of Rogers Road are not big 

enough, and there are also liability issues. 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if this topic can be added to the next school collaboration 

meeting agenda, as this is critical issue. 
Commissioner McKee said he is working with Orange County Schools (OCS) now on 

this issue. 
Commissioner Marcoplos said he wanted to recognize Coby Austin, who has been 

leading the the FSA, but is leaving the County tomorrow.   
The Board wished her good luck in the future.  
Travis Myren continued the presentation: 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if Animal Services’s number one priority for the coming 
year, could be identified. 

Bob Marotto, Animal Services Director, said staff is continuing to work to provide 
subsidized spay and neuter services for pets.  He said this program has been broadened, due 



to getting a grant for low income families, which is a primary community-oriented objective.  He 
said staff wants to broaden outreach through local communities. 

Chair Rich asked if the barn cats are working cats. 
 Bob Marotto said yes, and the County has a barn cat program, and these animals 
provide services to farm settings.  He said this program started in late 2017, and staff continues 
to work on this.  He said staff is working with people to get these cats spayed and neutuered. 

Commissioner McKee said barn cats are notoriously difficult to work with, as they may 
appear regularly, or not be seen for weeks.  He said these cats are wild animals. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 
 

Commissioner Price said 4-H offers great programs, and the increase is phenomenal. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 



 
 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if the after school program will be held in the schools. 
 David Stancil, Department of Environment, Agriculture, Parks and Recreation (DEAPR) 
Director, said it will be held at the Central Rec center. 

Chair Rich asked if additional staff is needed. 
David Stancil said no, seasonal employees will run the program. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 



 

 
  

Commissioner Dorosin asked if the County is planning another LocalFest. 
 Travis Myren said it is under the Article 46 funds (page 63). 
 Bonnie Hammersley said staff has talked about doing it in the spring, because of 
conflicting events. 
 

 
 

Commissioner Marcoplos clarified that there probably will not be a performance shell in 
the River Park. 
 David Stancil said entertainers generally bring out temporary stages, which is sometimes 
a blessing in disguise, as there is flexibility in being able to vary the location of the stage.  He 
said the Hillsborough Historic District Commission was concerned about the natural setting, and 
did not approve the shell in River Park. 
 Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 



 

 
 
Commissioner Dorosin referred to line item allocated for “memberships for fieldhouse 

operations” and asked if this line item is calculated according to a certain formula. 
John Stock, Sportsplex Director, said this is a best guess, and staff has looked at how 

the memberships have grown, and seen the velocity on an ongoing basis. 
Commissioner Price asked if the front door renovations will have a vestibule for energy 

efficiency. 
John Stock said this is a concern, and staff has not contemplated this.  He said it is an 

awkward situation and the cost would be significant.  He said the current doors are wearing with 
age, and need replacing.  He said staff can consider this question further.  
 Commissioner Price asked if there is a plan to do anything about the overhang and the 
bird problem. 

John Stock said yes, staff has tried to handle this, and knows something needs to done  
to deal with the bird problem. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 



 
 
Commissioner Dorosin asked if the maximum amount of money is being given out. 
Steve Brantley, Economic Development Director, said the business grants are running at 

a ratio of 3-4 times the ask on a quarterly basis, versus the amount of funds available.  He said 
the subcomittees that review these applications are not really maxing out the grants, but giving 
maybe 30-50% of a request in order to cover as many applicants as possible. 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if all available funds are being given out. 
 Steve Brantley said yes. 

Commissioner Price said it is important to note the return on investment of the 
agriculture grants. 

Tyrone Fisher, Cooperative Extension, said that the Breeze Farm is a great example. He 
said additional programs are bringing in additional revenue, so the invesment has continued to 
pay off. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 
 



Commissioner Dorosin asked if the Visitor’s Bureau’s budgeted amount is going down 
because of the expected occupancy tax revenue increase. 
 Laurie Paolicelli, Visitor Bureau (VB) Director, said no, and the VB is carrying forward a 
fund balance of $238,000.  She said the actual budget will be the same, and the occupancy tax 
is continuing to increase. 

Chair Rich asked if the Board of County Commissioners could get a list of the facility and 
technology work that is being done. 

Paul Laughton, Budget Director, said it is itemized in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
book under the Article 46 section.  He said the Article 46 funds are above the amount being 
spent in the schools. 

Commissioner McKee said the County needs to publicize this, as the percentage is not 
the only thing being given by the BOCC to fund the school systems. 

Travis Myren said there is a table that can be distributed that outlines the various 
sources. 

Chair Rich said it would be good for the BOCC to have this, as the BOCC has been 
getting emails about this lately. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 
 

Commissioner Price asked if the original amount in the loan pool could be identified. 
Steve Brantley, Economic Development Director, said that the amount was $200,000, 

which was transferred from the Visitors Bureau to the loan pool.  He said this money returns to 
the County with a minor amount of interest.  He said the demand has not been as strong since 
the County started the grant program, but it is still very active. 

Commissioner Marcoplos asked if staff could given an example of collaborative outreach 
transaction. 

Travis Myren said Carrboro has sponsored a festival, and asked the County to co-
sponsor it, and Chapel Hill has sponsored a luncheon and asked the County for funds. 

Commissioner Marcoplos asked if this is based on a discretionary need. 
Steve Brantley said it gives flexibility for unseen, miscellaneous requests. 
Travis Myren said with a more sizeable amount, staff will make a more formalized 

request with an intentional method to evaluate projects/events. 
Chair Rich asked if the date has been set for Economic Development Summit. 
Steve Brantley said he will be talking to the BOCC about this shortly and it was held in 

the fall last year and was radio based. 
Chair Rich said she received good feedback, and people really seemed to appreciate it. 
Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 

 



 

 
  

 

 



 
 
Travis Myren said there is an expansion of scope by moving the motor pool from Asset 

Management Services (AMS) to OCPT. 
Commissioner McKee asked if 6 employees are being moved, or if 6 new people are 

being hired. 
 Travis Myren said staff is being moved, and there are no new employees. 

Commissioner Marcoplos said it would be helpful to separate grant revenue versus fares 
revenue. 

Travis Myren said staff can provide this information. 
Commissioner McKee asked if staff has looked into any grants on electric buses that are 

amenable to the size the County needs. 
Theo Letman, Transportation Director, said staff is in the process of applying for grants 

for this, and are part of a state survey.  He said there are three grant programs: bus and bus 
facilities (5339); a low emission vehicle program; and a new bus program with funds, and the 
department is working with Brennan Bouma, Sustainability Coordinator, on this.  He said 
Brennan Bouma has applied for a grant for a high charge electric station. 

Commissioner McKee said this might be a good time to look into a reverse route. 
Theo Letman said staff is looking into exciting options for vehicles, and are open to 

different types. 
Commissioner Price said the improvements are wonderful, but one thing people are 

concerned with is the various types of partners on the routes.  She said it is very confusing. 
Theo Letman said staff meets regularly with local jurisdictions, and discuss this concern 

frequently.  He said there are a lot of jurisdictional boundaries that are federally mandated, and 
others that do not make sense. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 



 
 
Commissioner Greene asked if the 2017-18 project could be identified. 
Craig Benedict, Planning Director, said it was Collins Ridge in Hillsborough, and there 

was a master plan with mass grading.  He said this money supported a position that was for a 
number of years, and has gone through various phases. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 



 
 
Commissioner Price asked if there is an update on the hydrilla issue. 
Craig Benedict said staff is working with the State on this, and have a contract for 

additional chemicals.   
 Commissioner Price asked if carp are still being used. 

Craig Benedict said yes. 
Commissioner Price asked if there is an update on cluster development in the rural 

areas. 
Craig Benedict said the County has changed its regulations over the past five years to 

say that the more open space that is provided, the smaller the lots can be.  He said this 
sometimes causes problems with septic systems.  He said new Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) regulations provide better clustering, making it a good choice as new developers come to 
the area. 

Commissioner Price said it would be good to be able to have smaller homes for seniors 
who do not want large homes.  She asked if staff has researched this possibility.  

Craig Benedict said staff recently brought up the idea of having more duplexes, and 
there are some regulations regarding environmental health that prohibit this.  He said there are 
some density issues in the rural areas, due to watershed regulations, but the County should be 
able to move in that direction. 

 

 



 
 

Commissioner McKee referred to the solid waste program fees, and asked if staff 
expects the $148 fee to hold. 

Bonnie Hammersley said staff will do what it can to make this number hold, but when the 
structural deficit was addressed, the County was bringing in $1 million for recycling revenue.  
She said, currently, the County is paying $1 million to have recycling removed.  She said things 
have changed with the recycling markets, but staff will try to keep the fee no higher than $148.  
She said if a change is needed, staff will let the BOCC well in advance. 

Commissioner McKee said the fee is approaching a large percentage of the total 
property tax on some of the smaller home properties.  

Commissioner Dorosin said the County is paying $1 million to have the recycling taken 
elsewhere, and asked if there are any alternatives. 

Robert Williams, Solid Waste Director, said that if the County ends the recycling 
program, it would increase the disposal costs by roughly $1.4 million.  He said the County just 
completed a recycling study, and the problem is to reduce residual trash (which is currently at 
12% in recycling).  He said staff has identified where the County can partner with businesses 
and target the removal of glass from the recycling materials.   He said a pilot program to 
separate out glass, exists in some apartment communities, which has been well received.  He 
said the glass will be hauled to the glass recycling facility in Wilson.  

Commissioner Dorosin asked if part of the costs are due to recycled products not being 
as valuable to the recycler or because of the residual garbage.  

Robert Williams said both.  He said the residuals have complicated the problems, and 
companies have started charging additional fees to separate it.  He said the County needs to 
clean up the residuals. 

Commissioner McKee said getting rid of the program is not an answer, but the County 
needs to get really innovative about how to approach it, or it will eat the County alive. 

Robert Williams said the Solid Waste Management Plan is addressing this to meet 
Orange County’s needs.  He said staff needs to look into alternative technologies. 

Commissioner Dorosin said the goal is to get to an actual enterprise fund, but asked if 
fees are inherently aggressive, is there some other reason why it has to be a self sustaining 
enterprise fund that is funded through the fees.  He asked if increasing taxes is a more 
equitable way to distribute the cost than increasing the solid waste fee. 

Travis Myren said there is no legal requirement that it has to be recaptured through fees.  
He said the program fee is tantamount to a tax.  He said an alternative would be for the Board to 
increase property taxes in order to make the fund work, as there is no requirement that this be 
an enterprise fund. 

Bonnie Hammersley said there are fee waivers of $500 available, and the solid waste 
program has a safety net in the general fund.  She said if money is needed, to continue to 
support the efforts, it should be done on the back end, and not on the front end.  She said this 
money helped to fund other efforts in the budget that are needed now, and the solid waste fund 



has a healthy fund balance, around 34% versus the 16% fund balance for the County as a 
whole.  She said she plans to bring all fund balances to 16%, and so the County can rely on the 
solid waste fund balance for a little while, and hopefully the market will turn around. 

Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Commissioner Price said she does not understand the bullets in the budget highlights 

section. 
 Robert Williams, Solid Waste Director, said staff is reorganizing the department, and 
putting recycling in the appropriate area in the landfill.   He said it is not additional revenue, and 
it is a wash between different divisions. 
 Travis Myren resumed the presentation: 
 



 
 

Commissioner Price asked if the funds for the Mebane Joint Planning Project will be 
used for a specific purpose. 
 Travis Myren said the line item has been used for a variety of things. 
 Craig Benedict said examples include a consultant, use plans, and studies, etc. 

Chair Rich said she echoes Commissioner Dorosin’s previous comments that the 
performance measures have been helpful, as well as outcomes.  She asked if staff can put 
department heads’ contact information in each sections. 

Commissioner Dorosin asked if the remaining slides will be discussed. 
 Travis Myren said these slides are not related to this budget discussion, and the Board 
will have this discussion in September.  He said these slides were just included if questions 
came up. 

 

 

 
 
2. Adjournment 
 



A motion was made by Commissioner Marcoplos, seconded by Commissioner McKee to 
adjourn the meeting at 9:42 p.m. 

 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS 
 

Penny Rich 
Chair 

 
Sherri Ingersoll 
Deputy Clerk II 


	Chair Rich called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

